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U.S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
1201 New York Ave. NW - Suite 300
Washington, DC 20005

April 26, 2012

RE:  Freedom of Information Act Request

The U.S. Election Assistance Commission Office of Inspector General has received your
request pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act for each biannual response to
Senators Coburn and Grassley regarding their April 8, 2010, request to the EAC Office of
Inspector General to provide a summary of our non-public management advisories and
closed investigations.

In response to your request enclosed are the following documents:

Response dated May 24, 2010
Response dated May 26, 2011
Response dated December 12, 2011

If you interpret any portion of this response as an adverse action, you have an
opportunity to appeal it to the Election Assistance Commission (EAC). Your appeal
must be in writing and sent to the following address.

U.S. Election Assistance Commission
1201 New York Ave. NW - Suite 300
Washington, DC 20005

Please include your reasons for reconsideration and attach a copy of this and subsequent
EAC responses.

Sincerely,

oo
Curtis Crider
Inspector General

Enclosures



L .. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSIO
e OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL
e 1261 NEW YORK AVENUE, N.W.. SUITE 300
o WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
202 566-3700

May 24, 2010

The Honorable Charles E. Grassley

Ranking Member, Senate Commiitee on Finance
219 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510

The Honorable Tom Coburn

Ranking Member, Senate Permanent Subcommitice
on Investigations, Homeland Security and
Government Affairs Committee

350 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC 20510

RE: April 8, 2010 letter requesting information regarding
Offices of Inspector General

Dear Ranking Members Grassley and Coburn:

The U.S. Election Assistance Commission (EAC) Office of Inspector General (OIG) is
writing in response to your April 8, 2010 request for information in four categories: (1)
“instances when the agency resisted and/or objected to oversight activities and/or
restricted your access to informatiion;” (2) “biannual reports on all closed investigations,
evaluations, and audits conducied by your office that were not disclosed to the public;”
(3) any instances in which “any federal official threatens and/or otherwise attempts to
impede your office’s ability to communicate with Congress;” and (4) a copy of the
response provided to Representative Issa’s request concerning outstanding
recommendations. We appreciate the opportunity to discuss these matters with you and
your staff. Prior to responding to your questions, we provide, below, some background
information regardmg the EAC, its creation and ifs operations.

BACKGROUND

The EAC is a relatively new federal government agency. It was constituted in 2003
following the passage of the Help America Vote Act (HAVA), Public Law 107-252. The
Commission is headed by four Presidentially-appointed and Senate-confirmed
Commissioners. The EAC is primarily engaged in making and monitoring grants 1o
states, local governments, and non-profit organizations for the improvement of processes
related to conducting elections. In addition, the EAC is charged with operating the first
federally-funded testing and certification programs for voting equipment used in federal
elections and with conducting research regarding best practices related to election
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administration. The Commission is staffed by approximately 42 full-time positions, not
including the OIG.

Under HAV A and the Inspector General Act of 1978, as amended (IG Act), the EAC was
established as a designated federal entity (DFE) and required to appoint an Inspecior
General. 1 was appointed as the EAC’s first Inspector General in 2006. Since the
creation of this office, we have conducted 25 audits of states that were awarded funding
under HAV A, 12 audits and evaluations of EAC operations, and three investigations. My
office is staffed by three full-time positions: Inspector General, Counsel io the Inspector
General, and Assistant Inspector General for Audits. We contract with outside firms to
conduct grant and internal audits. In addition, we enter into agreements with other OIGs,
as needed, o investigate matters that are brought to our attention.

The small size of the EAC in combination with the fact that it is a relatively new federal
agency create difficulties for the EAC OIG over issues that most of our department-level
counterparis have battled and won many years ago. Below is some discussion of those
issues. In addition, you will find material regarding those issues in the letter responding
to Representative Issa, which is attached.

ACCESS TO RECORDS

In December 2009, the EAC OIG was asked by Representative Jo Ann Emerson to
review a settlement agreement entered between the EAC and a former candidate for the
position of EAC general counsel. The EAC OIG began this evaluation as a limited scope
review of the settlement. The EAC OIG seeks to answer several questions as a part of
this review: (1) whether EAC had the authority to enter into the agreement; (2) whether
the EAC used proper fiscal year funds to pay the settlement; and (3) whether the EAC
followed proper protocol in negotiating and entering into the agreement. On January 5,
2010, the OIG issued an engagement letter to the EAC and requested production of
documenis related to the evaluation. The EAC OIG requested production of the
documents by January 20, 2010. The documents were not produced until March 1, 2010.

During the intervening period of approximately two months, there were some delays due
to inclement weather in February 2010. However, at the enirance conference which was
held on February 18, 2010, it was revealed that at least one of the EAC Commissioners
questioned the OIG’s ability or authority to access documents that are protected by
attorney-client and other privileges including a negotiated, contractual confidentiality
clause. The OIG had previously provided legal citations and precedents granting us
access to such information as well as the impact of those privileges on the OIG should a
request be made of the OIG to release those documents. However, it was not until the
EAC obtained the opinion of outside counsel, following the entrance conference that the
EAC agreed 1o produce the records to the O1G.

This is the only instance in which the EAC OIG has experienced an unwillingness to
grant the OIG access to records which resulted in a delay or denial of access. However, it
resulied in a delay of more than one month in conducting this evaluation. The evaluation
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is ongoing. The OIG is nearing the end of field work on this evaluation and expects 1o
issue a final report on this matier during the summer of 2010.

REPORTS NOT MADE AVAIILABLE TO THE PUBLIC

The EAC OIG has not issued any reports during the period January 1, 2009 through April
30, 2010, which are unavailable fo the public. All reports are posied 1o the EAC OIG’s
Web site, www.eac.gov/eac ig.

AGENCY ATTEMPTS TO IMPEDE COMMUNICATION WITH CONGRESS

The EAC OIG has not experienced any incidents wherein the EAC attempted to impede
our ability to communicate with Congress. For information related to issues involved
with the EAC’s communications to Congress regarding the EAC OIG, please see the
response 10 Representative Issa’s request.

RESPONSE TO REPRESENTATIVE [SSA’S REQUEST

A copy of the letter response sent to Representative Issa regarding his March 24, 2010
request is attached to this letter for your review and consideration.

Again, we appreciate this opportunity to update you and your staff on our work and the
challenges that we face as an Office of Inspector General to a small designated federal
entity. If you have any questions regarding our response or would like 1o discuss any of
these matters further, please do not hesitate to contact me at 202-566-3125 or
cerider@eac.gov.

Sincerely,

Curtis W. Crider
Inspector General

Enclosure (1)

cc: The Honorable Max Baucus
Chairman, Senate Commitice on Finance
The Honorable Carl Levin
Chairman, Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations, Senate Commitiee
on Homeland Security and Governmentai Affairs
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May 26, 2011

The Honorable Charles E. Grassley

Ranking Member, Senate Committee on the Judiciary
224 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC 20510

The Honorable Tom Coburn

Ranking Member, Senate Permanent Subcommittee
on Investigations, Homeland Security and
Government Affairs Committee

350 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC 20510

RE:  April 8, 2010 letter requesting information regarding
reports

Dear Ranking Members Grassley and Coburn:

The U.S. Election Assistance Commission (EAC) Office of Inspector General (OIG) is
writing in response to your April 8, 2010 request for “biannual reports on all closed
investigations, evaluations, and audits conducted by your office that were not disclosed to
the public.” We appreciate the opportunity to provide you and your staff information
regarding our work.

During the past year, the EAC OIG issued one memorandum to the agency that was not
made available to the public. The memorandum stemmed from a hotline complaint that
we received concerning an allegedly inappropriate gift that was exchanged at the EAC’s
holiday party. The complainant alleged that some persons felt uncomfortable due to the
nature of the gift. We reviewed the EAC’s handling of the situation and issued a
memorandum offering recommendations to improve the EAC’s process in addressing
potentially harassing situations.
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Again, we appreciate this opportunity to update you and your staff on our work. If you
have any questions regarding our response, please do not hesitate to contact me at 202-
566-3125 or ccrider@eac.gov.

Sincerely,

Curtis W. Crider
Inspector General

cc: The Honorable Pat Leahy
Chairman, Senate Committee on the Judiciary
The Honorable Carl Levin
Chairman, Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations, Senate Committee
on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs
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December 12, 2011

The Honorable Charles E. Grassley

Ranking Member, Senate Committee on the Judiciary
224 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC 20510

The Honorable Tom Coburn

Ranking Member, Senate Permanent Subcommittee
on Investigations, Homeland Security and
Government Affairs Committee

350 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC 20510

RE:  April 8, 2010 letter requesting information regarding
reports

Dear Ranking Members Grassley and Coburmn:

The U.S. Election Assistance Commission (EAC) Office of Inspector General (OIG) is
writing in response to your April 8, 2010 request for “biannual reports on all closed
investigations, evaluations, and audits conducted by your office that were not disclosed to
the public.” We appreciate the opportunity to provide you and your staff information
regarding our work. For the six-month period ending September 30, 2011, the EAC OIG
has not issued any memorandums or reports to the agency that were not made available to
the public.

If you have any questions regarding our response, please do not hesitate to contact me at
202-566-3125 or ccrider @eac.gov.

Sincerely,

ey

Gort™ G il
Curtis W. Crider
Inspector General

cc: The Honorable Pat Leahy
Chairman, Senate Committee on the Judiciary
The Honorable Carl Levin
Chairman, Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations, Senate Committee
on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs

Fax: (202) 566-0957 Hotline: {(866) 552-0004 (Toll Free)
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